
 

 
 

 

 
 

Alcohol and Entertainment 
Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Monday 27 September 2021 at 10.00 am 
This will be held as an online virtual Meeting 
Details on how to access the link in order to view the meeting will be 
made available online via the following link: HERE 
 
 

Membership: 
 
Members Substitute Members 
Councillors: Councillors: 
 

Denselow (Chair) 
Long (Vice-Chair) 
Hylton 
 
 

Ahmed, Chohan, Hector, Kennelly, McLeish, Maurice, 
Shahzad 
 
 

 

 

For further information contact: Devbai Bhanji, Governance Assistant 
Tel: 020 8937 6841; Email: devbai.bhanji@brent.gov.uk 

 

For electronic copies of minutes, reports and agendas, and to be alerted when the 
minutes of this meeting have been published visit: 

www.brent.gov.uk/committees 

 
 

The press and public are welcome to attend this meeting as an 
online virtual meeting.  The link to view the meeting will be made 

available via the following link: HERE 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.brent.gov.uk/your-council/democracy-in-brent/local-democracy/live-streaming/
https://www.brent.gov.uk/your-council/democracy-in-brent/local-democracy/live-streaming/


 

2 
 

Notes for Members - Declarations of Interest: 
 

If a Member is aware they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business, they 
must declare its existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent and 
must leave the room without participating in discussion of the item.  
 

If a Member is aware they have a Personal Interest** in an item of business, they must declare its 
existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent. 
 

If the Personal Interest is also significant enough to affect your judgement of a public interest and 
either it affects a financial position or relates to a regulatory matter then after disclosing the 
interest to the meeting the Member must leave the room without participating in discussion of the 
item, except that they may first make representations, answer questions or give evidence relating 
to the matter, provided that the public are allowed to attend the meeting for those purposes. 
 
*Disclosable Pecuniary Interests: 
(a)  Employment, etc. - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 

profit gain. 
(b)  Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of expenses in carrying 

out duties as a member, or of election; including from a trade union.  
(c)  Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between the Councillors or 

their partner (or a body in which one has a beneficial interest) and the council. 
(d)  Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area. 
(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or longer. 
(f)  Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in which the 

Councillor or their partner have a beneficial interest. 
(g)  Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place of business or 

land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or of any one class of its issued 
share capital. 

 

**Personal Interests: 
The business relates to or affects: 
(a) Anybody of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management, and: 

 To which you are appointed by the council; 

 which exercises functions of a public nature; 

 which is directed is to charitable purposes; 

 whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion or policy (including a 
political party of trade union). 

(b) The interests a of a person from whom you have received gifts or hospitality of at least £50 as 
a member in the municipal year;  

or 
A decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or 
financial position of: 

 You yourself; 

 a member of your family or your friend or any person with whom you have a close 
association or any person or body who is the subject of a registrable personal interest.  

 



 

3 
 

 
Agenda 
 
Introductions, if appropriate. 
 
 

Item Page 
 

1 Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members  
 

 

2 Declarations of Interests  
 

 

 Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting, the nature 
and existence of any relevant disclosable pecuniary or personal interests 
in the items on this agenda and to specify the item(s) to which they relate. 
 

 

3 Application for the Review a Premises Licence by the Licensing 
Enforcement Officer for the premises known as The VIP Lounge, 546 
High Road, Wembley, HA0 2AA, pursuant to the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003  

 

1 - 68 

 
Date of the next meeting:  Monday 27 September 2021 @ 2.00pm 
 

 Please remember to SWITCH OFF your mobile phone during the meeting. 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

Application for the Review a Premises Licence 
 

Name of Applicant: Susana Figueiredo - Licensing Enforcement Officer 

  

Name & Address of Premises: The VIP Lounge, 546 High Road, Wembley, HA0 2AA 

  

Applicants Agent: Woods Whur 2014 Ltd – Luke Elford 

  

 
 
1. Application 
 
 The application is for the review of a premises licence held by Mr Rahman Mohamed. The 

premises are known as The VIP Lounge, 546 High Road, Wembley, HA0 2AA. 
 
 
2. Grounds for Review 
 
 The grounds for review are Prevention of Crime & Disorder and Public Safety. 
 
 Failure to comply with premises licence conditions and failure to comply with the 

Government Regulations in relation to Coronavirus Restrictions. 
 
3. Relevant Representations 
 
 Representation has been received from Licensing Enforcement Officers and the Police. 
 
 14 Letters of support have been received from members of the public. 
 
 
4. Background 
 

These premises are currently licensed for regulated entertainment and the sale of alcohol 
from 12:00hrs to 01:30hrs Monday to Sunday and to remain open from 12:00hrs until 
02:00hrs Monday to Sunday. 

  
The Designated Premises Supervisor is Darren Jules. 

 
   
 
7. Associated Papers 

A. Copy of Review Application 
B. Police Representation  
C. Letters of Support 
D. OS Map 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



  

 

 

 
 

  
The Licensing Authority 
Brent Civic Centre 
Engineers Way 
Wembley  
Middlesex 
HA9 0FJ  

 

Your ref:  

Our ref: 21/2965NW 

 

 
Brent Borough Licensing Department 
Harrow Police Station 
74, Northolt Road 
Harrow 
Middlesex 
HA2 0DN 
 
E-mail: Gary.L.R.Norton@met.police.uk 
Web: www.met.police.uk 
Mobile:07500 993 899 

Date: 06/09/2021 

 
  
Police Licensing comments regarding Brent Council Review of: The VIP 
Lounge, 546 High Road, Wembley, London, HA0 2AA 
 
I acknowledge receipt of an application for the review of under section 51 of the 
Licensing Act 2003, for The VIP Lounge, 546 High Road, Wembley, London, HA0 
2AA.  
 
On behalf of the Commissioner of Police of the Metropolis, I wish to make a 
representation, as police believe the following objectives have been 
undermined, namely the Prevention of Crime and Disorder and the Prevention 
of Public Nuisance.  
 
Background on venue 
 
The venue is situated within a cluster of 7 business units, normal entry is made via 
the entrance along the terraced business properties at 546 High Road Wembley. The 
interior of unit 7 is on multiple levels, the two lower levels had been utilised for 
unlicensed activities (regulated entertainment, sale/supply of alcohol) in 2018. 11th 
January 2018, bailiffs attended the mall and seized possession of all 7 units. Found 
within the units were 75 shisha pipes over the two lower floors of the venue. 
Since this time, new tenants took over and a premises licence applied for  and 
granted on 17/08/2019 with certain licensing conditions, these included the following 
times of operation: 
 

Regulated Entertainment 
 
Monday to Sunday – 12.00hrs – 01.30hrs 
 
Performance of Dance 
 
Monday to Sunday – 12.00hrs – 01.30hrs 
 
Late Night Refreshments 
 

Page 35



  

Monday to Sunday – 23.00hrs – 01.30hrs 
 
Supply of Alcohol 
 
Monday to Sunday – 12.00hrs – 01.30hrs 
 
Hours Premises is Open to the Public 
 
Monday to Sunday - 12.00hrs – 02.00hrs 
 

The basement rear area of the premises leads out into a service alley, which is 
where a lot of complaints arise from residential neighbours who attest to the issues of 
ASB noise nuisance at very late times in the night (0300-0430hrs+). 
The alley area is close to residential premises that face towards it. New residential 
premises are also being built close by which are likely to suffer similar complaints 
when they become occupied.  
 There have been regular complaints from local residents, as well as Brent Council 
licensing who carried out a late night visit to the premises, confirming the venue is 
providing licensable activity outside of its permissible hours. There were no TEN’s or 
late TEN’s granted for these events.  
 
Details of issues 
 
Resident complaints revolve around the regular late night revelry, noise, laughter and 
shouting emanating from the rear service alley exit, where patrons congregate to 
smoke, socialise, enter or exit. Many leave from this area, waking up the neighbours. 
19th June 2021, 20th June 2021, 25th June 2021 & 26th June 2021 were all reported 
late night finishes of beyond 0300hrs, one had people leaving at 0520hrs.  
Some of these residents have sick and needy children as the result of their specific 
medical conditions. Regardless of any unique medical concerns, every local resident 
has a right to a work/life balance and a peaceful night’s sleep. There is very little 
scope for peace and quiet at weekends during night-time, or other days that the 
venue might operate late. The venue has had a spate of late clubbing events that 
took place without authority to conduct licensable activities, resulting in complaints. 
Since the Council put in the review of the premises licence, there was an uplift in 
TEN applications requesting much later times for licensable activity. These were 
rejected due to the complaints regarding late night noise and disturbance. To grant 
these very early morning extensions would mean legitimising the continued 
annoyance of residents.  
On 25th July 2021, there was a report of a GBH violent crime, where the victim was 
spotted exiting the venue on Brent Council CCTV. He was found to have been 
stabbed in the leg. The Sergeant in charge of the case made a request for the CCTV 
from the venue within the 31 day time period, as stipulated on the license. She has 
assured they would provide the requested footage, but as yet (6th September 2021), 
none has been forthcoming. 
The venue essentially operates as a nightclub, promoting events via flyers on social 
media and selling tickets via sites such as Shoobs.com. There had been a recently 
opposed TEN granted by the Council and the applicant stated it was for a birthday 
party. Yet it isn’t a birthday party in the traditional sense, such as close friends and 
family etc., it is a ticketed and marketed event open to any who buy a ticket, a 
common theme in more candid nightclub style advertising.  
The issue here isn’t the nature of the music or D.J.s themselves, it’s the simple fact 
the venue is breaching its existing licence, opting for late night licensable activity 
when they feel they can “get away with it”, or hopefully have it granted officially for 

Page 36



  

them outside of their agreed hours. The venue is clearly using the rear service alley 
exit, which is a major concern for the public nuisance it causes to residents.  
The expectation of patrons to such events is a “late one”, many such events can run 
until 0400hrs or even “sun up” at 0600hrs. Unfortunately, the venue is not only 
nestled amongst business venues, but is in close proximity to many densely packed 
residential properties and given the continued use of the rear, it’s a site not best 
suited for late night regulated entertainment. The use of the rear service alley is most 
likely to hide the fact its open much later, allowing entry and exit via the rear away 
from CCTV. You also have to factor in the additional noise brought on by boisterous 
inebriated customers at these times.  
Police licensing support the review of the premises licence due to repeated breaches 
of licensable hours; failure to adhere to licence conditions regarding CCTV (1-6), as 
well as breaches of conditions 11, 12, 13 & 15. 
 
Licence Conditions are put in place for the responsible parties to ensure adherence 
to the licensing objectives and help prevent issues arising. However, when those 
same parties deliberately ignore or try to circumvent the conditions, despite 
recommendations and previous warnings, it is clear that the revocation of the 
premises licence is necessary.  
 
 
 
Yours Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 Gary Norton 2965NW 
 Licensing Constable – Brent Police 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



I have been to the VIP Lounge on numerous occasions since its opening in 2019. As a result 

of having good experiences at their events as well as, feeling safe and secure with the 

security and Management, I went on to book the venue for my own birthday. This was a 

paint and Prosecco party which was well organised and met all my expectations. As a result I 

had an amazing celebration and would recommend the venue to any of my peers.  

Kind regards 

Asia Roye-Wright (Parole Manger, Parole Board for England & Wales) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 39

Linda.Legister
Line



This page is intentionally left blank



Dear Brent Licencing, 

 

My name is Beverley Reid.  

My address is 3 Greenway gardens, harrow HA3 7EN. 

My email address is  

I am 58 years of age and I have attended this venue namely the VIP lounge in Wembley 

on a few occasions. I have always found it welcoming and professionally run. 

The security are always friendly and engaging and I have always felt safe and calm inside 

the venue.  

I personally have also had to pleasure to book this premises for a dinner and dance  

Which was a belated Birthday celebration as I was a bit poorly around the time of my  

Birthday the month prior this booking was in November 2019. I had an amazing and  

unforgettable night and I am looking to book my 60th birthday here also.  

It sadens me to hear that this venue is coming under review especially after this trying  

period and hardship we have all gone through with this coronavirus and being in lockdown. 

.I have many friends and family within the area who have also attended the venue and they  

too only have positive feedback regarding this venue.  

 

Yours sincerely  

Beverley reid  

 

 

Page 41

Linda.Legister_1
Line

Linda.Legister_2
Line

Linda.Legister_3
Line



This page is intentionally left blank



To Brent Council, 

 

We at Champions Mall 495 High road Wembley have never 

witnessed any crime, violence or anti social behaviour coming from 

the VIP Lounge bar which is adjacent to our business.  

I wish them all the best with this review as they are a good well run 

business in our opinion.  

Sincerely Champions Mall 

 

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



DUBAI MALL 

546 HIGH ROAD WEMBLEY 

WE SUPPORT THIS VENUE THE VIP LOUNGE IN RELATION TO THE REVIEW 

APPLICATION. THE VENUE IS RUN PROFESSIONAL AND WE HAVE NO 

COMPLAINTS. WE HAVE NEVER HAD TO COMPLAIN ABOUT MESS, NOISE, 

CROWDS, DAMAGE OR ANY UNRULY BEHAVIOUR.  

WE ARE VERY HAPPY WITH THIS BUSINESS AND FEEL THAT ALL BUSINESS THAT 

HELP AND ADD VALUE TO THE LOCAL COMMUNITY SHOULD BE SUPPORTED BY 

THE COUNCIL AND AUTHORITIES EVEN MORE SO AFTER AND DURING THIS 

CORONAVIRUS AND LOCKDOWN WITH ALL THE DISRUPTIONS AND CLOSING 

OF BUSINESSES. MANY OF US DID NOT SURVIVE THIS, THE FINANCIAL IMPACT 

AS WELL AS THE PHYSIOLOGICAL IMPACT IS STILL BEING FELT. ITS TIME TO 

HELP UPLIFT THIS COMMUNITY NOT TRY TO TAKE MORE AWAY FROM IT.  

REGARDS DUBAI MALL 

Contact details   

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Hi there,  

I am the owner of SAM's chicken on Wembley high road. My staff 

and myself have never heard or witnessed any disturbance, criminal 

activity or nuisance from the VIP Lounge which is a few doors down 

from my shop. They mainly open on weekends and customers that 

attend there also come and buy food from us sometimes which is 

good for business. I witness a lot of things in and around the 

Wembley high road as we close late in the night but never anything 

bad to do with here. Sometimes the road behind our businesses gets 

full with cars but this is also down to people attending other places 

nearer the other end of the road and around Lancelot road. There 

has also been noisy neighbours on a couple occasions playing music 

in cars and having friends drinking on the road late at night. We have 

even witnessed football fans during the euro matches coming and 

banging on our glass and hitting shutters on neighbouring shops for 

no reason. More should be done to help and protect the Wembley 

businesses rather than making it hard for some. I think they are 

being picked on for some reason this needs looking into. 

Regards  

Sams Chicken 

538 High Road Wembley, Middlesex, HA0 2AA 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



To whom it may concern, 

My name is Tanya Wright, I reside at 28 Tyrell close HA1 3UX.  

I booked the VIP Lounge for my 40th Birthday celebration back in 

October 2019. 

I found the service friendly and professional. I have also been to a 

couple other events at this establishment and have always had a 

good time along with colleagues, friends and family. I have never 

witnessed or heard of anything negative associated with this venue. 

I have worked as a designated detention officer from 2007 – 2014 for 

the Metropolitan police. I am currently an associate police lecturer, a 

volunteer referral order panel member for harrow Council youth 

offending team and I also work as an appropriate adult for the 

appropriate adult service and, as such I am a key worker within the 

criminal justice system (CJS). 

Kind regards 

Tanya Wright 

 

Page 49

Linda.Legister_4
Line

Linda.Legister_5
Line

Linda.Legister_6
Line



This page is intentionally left blank



Hello 

I am Mr Thamer Haratizadeh, I am a resident and business owner at 556 Market Way. I have been 

here for many many years now and see and hear lots of things. I have never been disturbed by any 

music or overly loud noise coming from this club the VIP Lounge which has an exit which leads onto 

Market way. The two men that run it Darren and Mido are always polite and if they park their car on 

Market way they leave their number in the windscreen incase a resident or another business needs 

to call for any reason. I feel they do good for the diversity of this Wembley area and I have no 

complaints about this business. Many times especially on weekend nights people come into Market 

way and stand up drinking and talking to early hours of the morning leaving their food and bottles 

when they leave. Many times as well on weekends people gather usually younger people in cars and 

play loud music and smoke and drink, this happened many times during the lockdown. Sometimes 

this goes on till after 5am which is a nuisance. The road is dirty and not maintained by council even 

though they now put yellow lines here and ticket people and fine businesses and residents that park 

here which is not right. If the road was clear or made private I believe these noise things and people 

who do not live here will not come anymore. There are some other clubs nearer the entrance of 

Market Way that may be getting blamed for things as well to which I dont know about but what I do 

know is that I have no complaints about noise or nuisance from the VIP Lounge.  

If you need to contact me my email address is  

 

Sincerly Thamer Haratizadeh  

Page 51

Linda.Legister_7
Line

Linda.Legister_8
Line

Linda.Legister_9
Line



This page is intentionally left blank



REVIEW STATEMENT IN REGARDS TO THE VIP LOUNGE WEMBLEY 

To Whom It May Concern, 

I am writing a review on my recent experience when visiting the VIP Lounge in Wembley. As 

someone who is very busy and not having much time to socialise whenever I do get a chance it is 

few and far between. I was given an invitation to celebrate with friends at this venue which I had 

never heard of or been to prior and upon realising that it was not a great distance from my residence 

I decided to attend.  

I was pleasantly surprised with the execution of the event from the atmosphere, music, security and 

more importantly management from start to finish. In my years I have attended a few events as one 

can imagine. On this occasion I was pleased to see management actively taking on their role from 

interacting with customers and trying to insure that they were having a good time me being one of 

them. The tone was set from the door by being politely greeted by security and it was refreshing to 

find out that the head of the security was actually a female rather than the male stereo typical 

doorman.  

My overall experience was a very positive one and as a result I would not hesitate time permitting to 

attend this venue again and I would recommend this venue to anyone. 

Yours Faithfully  

Travis Stewart  

(Department For Transport Head Of Performance and Risk Central Government) 

  

 

 

Page 53

Linda.Legister_10
Line



This page is intentionally left blank



Dear Brent Council 

We are situated directly next to the VIP Lounge on high road Wembley. We have never had to 

complain about noise, nuisance, anti social behaviour or even rubbish ie cigarette butts or vessels 

being left in front of our shop. We know that they use the area at the front of our shop as the bars 

smoking area and its general clean and tidy after. 

The owners are very nice people and their business being situated there has added to the general 

trade to its neighbouring shops. To read that their licence has come under review for the prevention 

of crime and disorder as well as public nuisance is hard to believe.  

Yours Sincerely  

Wonderland 548 Wembley high road  

 

 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Gadget centre 497 High rd Wembley  

Hello we at the gadget shop have no issues with this business and no complaints about this business. 

We have never heard anything bad about this business only positive talk from locals. The owners are 

also very friendly and have introduced themselves from when they opened a few years ago.  

We have never witnessed any crime or anti social behaviour. There are a number of venues within 

this vicinity hence it saddens us to hear that this one solely seems to be getting the blame for late 

night noise and nuisance when other venues close later in this area. I feel that there might be some 

other reasons behind this why all these things are being attributed to them. I have seen on a couple 

of occasions with my own eyes the borough camera outside us directly facing and fixated on the 

entrance of the venue and there is nothing going on and the camera stays there not even being 

concerned with anything else that is going on on Wembley high road. I feel this is not right and also 

makes me feel something personal maybe behind this also. 

Your Sincerely on behalf of the gadget centre  

  

 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Alfa Internet 

 

 

Hello, I am Abdelhameed Shikh owner of Alfa Internet on Wembley Park Drive. I have known Mr 

Rahman for 5+ years. He is a popular man of good character and has a good nature.  

He has a several barber shops and a bar and restaurant also in Wembley. I have never heard of 

anything bad associated with him and his businesses. He has always helped other shop owners, 

customers and those in the local community. 

He really cares about things and does thing properly, following all guidelines, rules and regulations 

and in fact supports other businesses to do the same. He is a very hardworking individual, who I 

cannot fault in any way. 

Yours Sincerely  

 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Eccola pizzeria 

 

To Brent Council,  

We have known Mr Rahman for a number of years from the Wembley area. He has Mr Adams 

Barbers that is across the Road from us and The VIP Lounge, which we have visited on several 

occassions. His customers regularly eat at our establishment as well as Mr Rahman himself. He 

always encourages his staff, friends and family to spend their money locally to support the 

community. He is always looking out for us and we do this also. He is such a nice, popular well liked 

and respected member of this community. We are all happy to have a figure like this amongst us. 

Best regards, 

 

Eccola Pizzeria  

87 Wembley Park Drive 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



01.09.2021 

 

Hello,  

We at Shubh Aarambh know and see Mr Rahman around and about almost everyday talking and 

interacting with the community. He is a well-liked and popular businessman. He is always ready to 

help anyone around without hesitation and supports other businesses where possible.  

We are happy to know this man and wish him all success.  

Best regards 

 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



UBC Accounts & Tax Consultants 

 

7th September 2021 

To Whom it may concern, 

 

I can verify that Mr Rahman is a man of good character and I have known him for over 10 

years. He has numerous businesses and is well know around the Wembley area. His barber 

shops Mr Adams are extremely popular, have good branding and are well established.  

All in all Mr Rahman is a positive impact on those around this area and is always quick to 

offer assistance and help where he can. He is a pillar of the local community contributing to 

charitable causes and looking out for the wellbeing of the local community and residents. 

Faithfully  

Senior Accounts Manager 

UBC Accounts & Tax Consultants  

 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Application for the Review a Premises Licence by the Licensing Enforcement Officer for the premises known as The VIP Lounge, 546 High Road, Wembley, HA0 2AA, pursuant to the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003
	3.2 VIP Review Application
	3.3 VIP Review Police Rep
	3.4 VIP Lounge - Support 1
	3.4.1 VIP Lounge - Support 2
	3.4.2 VIP Lounge - Support 3
	3.4.3 VIP Lounge - Support 4
	3.4.4 VIP Lounge - Support 5
	3.4.5 VIP Lounge - Support 6
	3.4.6 VIP Lounge - Support 7
	3.4.7 VIP Lounge - Support 8
	3.4.8 VIP Lounge - Support 9
	3.4.9 VIP Lounge - Support 10
	3.4.10 VIP Lounge - Support 11
	3.4.11 VIP Lounge - Support 12
	3.4.12 VIP Lounge - Support 13
	3.4.13 VIP Lounge - Support 14
	3.5 VIP Lounge OS Map




